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Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholders,

I am pleased to report that the Group recorded encouraging results in 2005. Despite the keen competition in the mobile

handset industry, the Group achieved a turnover of HK$4,768.5 million during the year under review, representing an

increase of 3.9% as compared to HK$4,590.1 million last year. The profit attributable to equity holders reached HK$49.9

million as compared to last year’s loss of HK$19.3 million.

In July 2005, the Group renewed the cooperation agreement with the Philips Group. The renewal sets a new milestone

to the Group. The new cooperation not only extends the scope of cooperation, but also broadens and strengthens the

Group’s business relationship with the Philips Group. Pursuant to the new arrangement, the Group will provide mobile

handset Original Equipment Manufacturer (“OEM”) service, and will design, develop, manufacture and supply MP3

players and other portable electronics products to the Philips Group as well. The Group further entered into a service

agreement with the Philips Group in January 2006 in which the Group will provide mobile handset maintenance service

to the Philips Group. The new business profile enables the Group to establish a comprehensive industry value chain in

mobile communication products which extend the Group’s products and services range and secure a stable source of

revenue for the Group, and enable the Group to capitalise on the rapid growth of the global consumer electronics and

communications products market. Looking forward, the Group will continue to explore proactively new business

opportunities in consumer electronics and communication products and services, and endeavour to maintain itself as

one of the major product supplier in the industry.

Yang Xiaotang  |  Chairman

“We endeavour to
materialise quantum
growth in our business and
bring better returns to our
investors.”
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In parallel to the strengthening of the existing core business, the Group has also been actively pursuing new investment

opportunities. In particular, the Group set up a wholly-owned digital media entity in Suzhou during the year which

worked closely with China Electronics Corporation (“CEC”), the controlling shareholder of the Company, in the

development of cable television operation. The management believes that cable television broadcasting and related

services are business sectors with promising potential in the coming future. Feasibility studies are currently in progress to

structure the best operational profile in the involvement in the development and integration of domestic cable television

broadcasting in China. With the technological advantage of CEC and through maximising the synergies between CEC and

the Group, the management is confident with the success and materialising the quantum growth in return in this

business area.

On behalf of the Group, I would like to extend my sincere thanks to our staff for their contribution and devoted effort,

and to our shareholders and business partners for their continuous cooperation and support. To my fellow board

members, I thank you for your dedication to the development of the Group. We will endeavour to improve the results of

the Group and bring better returns to our investors in the future.

Sincerely yours,

Yang Xiaotang

Chairman

10 April 2006

Chairman’s Statement



5

CHINA ELECTRONICS CORPORATION HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2005

Management Discussion and AnalysisManagement Discussion and Analysis

Business Review

For the year ended 31 December 2005, the Group recorded a consolidated sales of HK$4,768.5 million (2004:

HK$4,590.1 million) and profit attributable to equity holders of HK$49.9 million (2004: loss of HK$19.3 million)

respectively. Basic earnings per share for the year was HK cents 4.61 (2004: loss of HK cents 2.17 per share). The

Board proposed a final dividend of HK$0.02 per share (2004: Nil) amounting to a total dividend of HK$21.7 million

in cash, representing a dividend payout ratio of 43.4%, which is subject to the approval by the shareholders of the

Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

During the year under review, the Group sold 7.9 million units of mobile handsets, representing a decrease of 6.6%

as compared to 2004. The decrease was primarily due to the drop in sales of Philips branded mobile handsets with

which sales revenue dropped by 19.3% to HK$3,349.3 million. The decrease was, however, offset by the terrific

results in own-branded mobile handsets. During the year, sales revenue from own-branded mobile handsets was

HK$1,063.4 million, achieving a remarkable growth of 1.9 times over last year.

In the second half of the year, the Group launched new product lines in which new products including MP3 players

and other portable electronics products were offered to the Philips Group and other OEM customers. The new

product line contributed HK$319.6 million to the sales revenue of the Group. In addition to other sales-related

services provided to the customers, the total revenue for the year was HK$4,768.5 million, representing a mild

increase of 3.9% over 2004.
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Cost of goods sold for the year increased by 3.8% to HK$4,516.5 million. The primary component of product cost was

cost of raw material, which represented 95.8% of the total cost. The increase in cost of goods sold was in line with the

growth in sales. Despite the general increase in the cost of material supply, the Group’s global material sourcing

channels together with the well-implemented inventory control policies effectively minimised the overall impact on the

production costs of the Group.

Operating profit for the year was HK$101.4 million, representing an increase of 3.9% over last year. The operating profit

margin was 2.1% which was in line with that of previous year. In addition to savings in finance costs and as the Group

did not have impairment of goodwill this year, the Group recorded a profit for the year of HK$84.3 million, a growth of

12.1 times as compared to HK$6.4 million last year. The profit attributable to equity holders for the year was HK$49.9

million.

Capital Resources and Liquidity

The Group finances its operations primarily by internal resources and short term bank borrowings. As at 31 December

2005, the Group had cash and cash equivalents amounted to HK$306.4 million (2004: HK$217.4 million) which were

primarily denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and United States dollars.

As at 31 December 2005, the Group had unsecured short term bank borrowings of HK$230.8 million (2004: HK$392.2

million). The bank borrowings were all denominated in Renminbi, and were borrowed at contracted fixed interest rate.

The total bank facilities available to the Group were RMB600 million. As at 31 December 2005, the Group did not have

any pledged assets or guarantee.

As at 31 December 2005, the Group had net current assets of HK$470.7 million (2004: HK$371.2 million). The overall

gearing ratio, which is calculated as the total liabilities over total assets of the Group, was 70.6% (2004: 70.2%).

The Group’s exports sales are predominantly invoiced in United States dollars and its domestic sales are invoiced in

Renminbi. The Group imports some of its raw materials and production and testing equipments from overseas suppliers

which are paid in United States dollars, Japanese Yen and Euro. The Group will make use of hedging contracts, when

appropriate, to leverage the risk of foreign exchange fluctuation arising from its operations.

Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitment

As at 31 December 2005, the Group had contracted but not provided for capital commitment of HK$3.2 million (2004:

HK$8.7 million) for the acquisition of fixed assets and intangible assets. The Group did not have any material

contingent liabilities outstanding as at 31 December 2005 (2004: Nil).
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Employee and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2005, the Group had 3,500 employees, the majority of whom were based in China.

The Group recognises the importance of high calibre and competent staff and has a strict recruitment policy and

performance appraisal scheme. Remuneration packages are largely in line with industry practices, and are

formulated on the basis of performance and experience and will be reviewed regularly. Bonus and other merit

payments are linked with the performance of the Group and of the individuals as incentive to optimise

performance. The Company has in place a share option scheme, pursuant to which share options may be granted

to selected personnel of the Group, with a view to encouraging employees to work towards enhancing the value of

the Group.

Continuing Connected Transactions

On 13 July 2005, the Group’s principal operating subsidiary, Shenzhen Sang Fei Consumer Communications

Company Limited (“Sang Fei”), entered into a purchasing agreement (the “Purchasing Agreement”) with Philips

Consumer Electronics International B.V. Pursuant to the Purchasing Agreement, in addition to the mobile handset

OEM business, Sang Fei will design, develop, manufacture and supply MP3 players and other portable electronics

products to the Philips Group. Sang Fei will also provide product maintenance services and supply related spare

parts to the Philips Group. Besides, Sang Fei may also source raw materials from the Philips Group on a non-

committed basis.

The Purchasing Agreement is for a term of two and a half years and will expire on 31 December 2007. Upon expiry,

the Purchasing Agreement may be extended for further one year unless either party objects. The price of the

products and spare parts to be supplied and the raw materials to be purchased from the Philips Group under the

Purchasing Agreement is determined after arm’s length negotiations between the parties with reference to market

rates. For product maintenance services, Sang Fei will charge service fee based on the actual raw materials and

spare parts consumed plus a pre-agreed service charge. The annual caps for the financial year ended 31 December

2005 and the two financial years ending 31 December 2006 and 2007 in relation to the aggregate consideration to

be received by Sang Fei from the Philips Group for the supply of products and spare parts and the provision of

product maintenance services are RMB5,610 million, RMB7,013 million and RMB7,714 million, respectively, and the

annual caps for the aggregate consideration to be paid by Sang Fei to the Philips Group for the purchase of raw

materials are RMB1,500 million, RMB1,875 million and RMB2,063 million respectively.

On 21 January 2006, Sang Fei further entered into a maintenance service agreement (the “Maintenance Service

Agreement”) with Philips (China) Investment Company Limited (“Philips China”), whereby Sang Fei will provide

mobile handsets maintenance service to Philips China. The term of the Maintenance Service Agreement is for one

year commencing from 1 January 2006. Upon expiry of the one-year term, the agreement may be extended for one

year unless either party objects. The price of the maintenance service will be determined after arm’s length

negotiations between the parties with reference to the estimated costs to be incurred by Sang Fei for the provision

of the maintenance services plus a service charge which is determined in accordance with market rates. The annual

cap as set for the aggregate consideration to be received by Sang Fei from Philips China in relation to the provision

of maintenance service was RMB60 million.
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As the Philips Group owns 25% interest in Sang Fei, the transactions contemplated under the Purchasing Agreement and

the Maintenance Service Agreement constitute the continuing connected transactions of the Company. The directors are

of the opinion that the entering into of the Purchasing Agreement and Maintenance Service Agreement is in the best

interest of the Company and the shareholders of the Company as a whole. CEC, as the controlling shareholder of the

Company, has approved the Purchasing Agreement and the Maintenance Service Agreement and the continuing

connected transactions contemplated thereunder by way of written approvals.

On 3 March 2006, Sang Fei entered into a plastic supply agreement with Shenzhen Sang Da Baili Electronics Co., Ltd.

(“Baili”), whereby Sang Fei will purchase from Baili the plastic parts used for the manufacture of mobile handsets. The

agreement will be for a term of 3 years commencing from 1 April 2006. The price of the plastic parts to be supplied by

Baili to Sang Fei under the agreement will be determined after arm’s length negotiation with reference to market rates.

The pricing terms will be no less favourable than those offered to Sang Fei by other third party suppliers. The Company

estimated that the aggregate amount of consideration to be paid by Sang Fei to Baili for the purchase of plastic parts for

the nine months ending 31 December 2006, for the two financial years ending 31 December 2007 and 2008 and for the

three months ending 31 March 2009 will be RMB43.5 million, RMB104.5 million, RMB120 million and RMB30 million

respectively.

As Baili is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of CEC, the transactions contemplated under the agreement

constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company. The transactions are subject to the approval by the

shareholders in the special general meeting to be held on 21 April 2006.

Capital Reorganisation and Change in Board Lot Size

As at 31 December 2004, the Company had accumulated losses of HK$154.4 million and contributed surplus of HK$140.3

million. On 18 March 2005, the Board resolved to apply the entire contributed surplus to set off an equivalent amount

against the accumulated losses.

At a special general meeting of the Company held on 17 May 2005, the shareholders of the Company approved a capital

reorganisation whereby the nominal value of the shares of the Company was reduced from HK$0.01 each to HK$0.00125

each. Immediately after the reduction, every eight issued shares with nominal value of HK$0.00125 each were

consolidated into one new share of HK$0.01 each. With the implementation of the capital reorganisation, the issued

share capital of the Company comprises 1,083,560,000 shares of HK$0.01 each. An amount of HK$75.8 million standing

to the credit of the share capital account of the Company was cancelled and credited to the contributed surplus account

of the Company, and an equivalent amount in the contributed surplus account was then applied to set off against the

entire remaining accumulated losses of the Company.



9

CHINA ELECTRONICS CORPORATION HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2005

With effect from the completion of the capital reorganisation, the shares of the Company were traded in board lot

of 2,000 shares each.

Termination of Acquisition of CECW

On 4 April 2005, the Company entered into an equity transfer agreement pursuant to which the Company agreed

to acquire from China Electronics Industry Corporation, a subsidiary of CEC, a 48% equity interest in CEC Wireless

R&D Ltd. at a cash consideration of HK$22 million (the “Acquisition”). However, as the conditions precedent as set

out in the equity transfer agreement have not been fulfilled or waived by the long stop date of 15 August 2005, the

equity transfer agreement was terminated automatically according to the terms of the agreement. Termination of

the Acquisition had no material adverse impact on the business operation or financial position of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to achieving the best corporate governance practices by emphasising its accountability,

transparency, independence, responsibility and fairness. The Company is dedicated to exercise corporate

governance through regular reviews of its adopted practices with reference to the Code on Corporate Governance

Practices (“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”).

The Company has fully complied with the CG Code throughout 2005. The following summarises the corporate

governance practices adopted by the Company.

Board of Directors

The board of directors of the Company (“Board”) consists of two executive directors, two non-executive directors

and three independent non-executive directors. The Chairman of the Board is a non-executive director, who is

responsible for the leadership and overseeing the functioning of the Board and the strategic development of the

Group. The Managing Director is delegated with the authority and responsible for managing the Group’s business,

and implementation of the Group’s strategy in achieving the overall commercial objectives. There are no relations

among the directors (including the Chairman and the Managing Director).

All the directors, including the non-executive directors, will be subject to retirement by rotation for every three

years and in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company. The remuneration of the directors are determined with

reference to their duties, responsibilities and experience, and to the prevailing market conditions.

The Board is responsible for the formulation of long term business objectives, strategies and plans, and to monitor

and control the operating and financial performance of the Group. The day-to-day operations and implementation

of business objectives are delegated to the Managing Director. The management is delegated with power and

authority to carry out daily operations and duties.

All directors actively participate in the review and monitor of the Company’s business. The list of directors and their

attendance record of the board meetings in 2005 are set out below:

Number of full board meetings held in 2005: 7

Number of

Member of the Board meetings attended

Non-executive directors

Yang Xiaotang (Chairman) 5

Tong Baoan (Vice Chairman) 4

Executive directors

Fan Qingwu (Managing Director) 6

Hua Longxing 7

Independent non-executive directors

Chan Kay Cheung 7

Wong Po Yan 7

Yin Yongli 7
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There has been no change to the board composition throughout 2005 and hence the board has not deal with or

consider nomination of directors. The biographies of the directors are set out on page 13 of the annual report.

Compliance with the Model Code for Securities Transactions by

Directors of Listed Issuers

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. All Directors have

confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company, that they fully complied with the Model Code throughout the

year 2005.

Remuneration Committee

The Board has established a remuneration committee, comprising the three independent non-executive directors

and an executive director of the Company. List of members of the remuneration committee is set out below. The

terms of reference of the remuneration committee are available for inspection upon request at the principal office

of the Company in Hong Kong.

The principal responsibilities of the remuneration committee include reviewing and recommending to the Board the

remuneration policy and the remuneration of the directors and the senior management.

The remuneration committee has held one meeting in 2005 to review the remuneration package of the directors

and the policy over grant of share options to employees. The attendance of individual members at the

remuneration committee meeting is set out below:

Number of

Member of the remuneration committee meetings attended

Wong Po Yan (Chairman) 1

Chan Kay Cheung 1

Yin Yongli 1

Fan Qingwu –

Details of the remuneration of the directors and the share options granted to the directors for the year ended 31

December 2005 are set out on page 59 and 18 of the annual report respectively.

Audit Committee

The Company has established an audit committee comprising the three independent non-executive directors of the

Company. The members have extensive experience in financial matters and one of them is a certified public

accountant. List of members of the audit committee is set out below. The terms of reference of the audit

committee are available for inspection upon request at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong.
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The audit committee provides independent review and supervision of financial reporting, and examines the

effectiveness of the internal controls of the Group and the adequacy of the external audits. The audit committee

examines all matters relating to the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, including

consideration of the auditing functions, internal controls, information systems, and financial reporting matters.

External auditors and the directors are invited to attend the meetings as and when necessary. The audit committee

also serve as a channel of communication between the Board and the external auditors.

The audit committee has held two meetings in 2005 to review the annual and interim accounts and the

effectiveness of the internal control practices of the Group. The audit committee has also reviewed the audit plan

and approach of the external auditors and monitors regularly the progress and results of the audit. The attendance

of individual members at the audit committee meeting is set out below:

Number of

Member of the audit committee meetings attended

Chan Kay Cheung (Chairman) 2

Wong Po Yan 2

Yin Yongli* 2

* certified public accountant

During 2005, the Group paid to the auditors HK$1,140,000 for audit services. The Group also paid the auditors

HK$100,000 for due diligence review services.

Accountability and audit

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation of accounts which give a true and fair view of the state of

affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow during the reporting period. A statement from the auditors

about their reporting responsibilities is set out on page 25 of the annual report. In preparing the accounts for the

year ended 31 December 2005, the directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them

consistently and have made prudent and reasonable judgements and estimates and have prepared the accounts on

a going concern basis. The Board has also reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group

through the assistance of the external auditors to ensure a sound system is maintained and operated by the

management in compliance with agreed processes and standards.

On behalf of the Board

Yam Pui Hung Robert

Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 10 April 2006
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yang Xiaotang, aged 63, is the Chairman of the Company. Mr. Yang graduated from Yangzhou University, the

PRC, and was the vice president and subsequently the president of Jin Ling Petrochemical Corporation. During

1988 to 1992, Mr. Yang was the deputy city mayor and thereafter the mayor of Changzhou City, Jiangsu Province,

and he was the deputy provincial governor of Jiangsu Province and the general secretary of Suzhou City during

1992 to 1998. Mr. Yang was the vice governor of the China Development Bank during 1998 to 2001. He then

joined China Electronics Corporation (“CEC”) and was the president of CEC until 2005. Mr. Yang joined the

Company in September 2004.

Mr. Tong Baoan, aged 58, is the Vice Chairman of the Company and a director of CEC. Mr. Tong graduated from

Tianjin University, the PRC, and was the deputy director of the Department of International Cooperation of the

Ministry of Electronics Industry under the State Council. During 1996 to 2001, Mr. Tong was the general manager of

Shenzhen Sang Da Electronics Corporation, and was the vice president of CEC from 2001 to 2005. Mr. Tong joined

the Company in September 2004.

Executive Directors

Mr. Fan Qingwu, aged 42, is the Managing Director of the Company. He is also a director of Shenzhen Sang Fei

Consumer Communications Company Limited (“Sang Fei”). Mr. Fan graduated from the Faculty of Economics of the

Graduate School, Renmin University of China in the PRC. From 1996 to 1999, Mr. Fan was the executive vice

president of China Securities Industry Institute. From 1999 to 2003, he was the general manager of the Investment

Banking Department and the Asset Management Department of CEC. Mr. Fan is the vice president of China

Electronics Industry Corporation since 2003 and the Chief Economist of CEC in 2005. Mr. Fan joined the Company

in September 2004.

Mr. Hua Longxing, aged 64, is an executive director of the Company and is also the chairman of the board of

directors of Sang Fei. Mr. Hua graduated from the Faculty of Wireless Engineering of Southeast University in the

PRC. From 1993 to 2000, Mr. Hua was the vice-chairman of the board of directors and the general manager of

Shenzhen SED Industry Company Limited. Before that, he was the deputy general manager of Shenzhen Sang Da

Electronics Corporation. From 1983 to 1987, he was the director of the Liaison Division of the office of Ministry of

Electronics Industry in Shenzhen Economic Zone. Mr. Hua joined the Company in September 2004.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Kay Cheung, aged 59, is an executive director and deputy chief executive of The Bank of East Asia,

Limited. He joined the bank in 1965 and possesses extensive knowledge and experience in the banking industry.

Mr. Chan is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers, a member of the MPF Industry Schemes

Committee, advisory committee member on the Admission Scheme for Mainland Talents and Professionals of the

Hong Kong Immigration Department, China trade advisory committee member of Hong Kong Trade Development

Council and international senior economic consultant of The People’s Government of Shaanxi Province. He is also

an independent non-executive director of Chu Kong Shipping Development Company Limited and Four Seas Food

Investment Holdings Limited. Mr. Chan was appointed as director of the Company in May 1997.

Mr. Wong Po Yan, aged 82, is the chairman and managing director of United Overseas Enterprises Limited and the

chairman of the board of Asia Television Limited. Mr. Wong was the vice-chairman of the Basic Law Committee of

Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, the chairman of the Airport Authority, and a member of the Drafting

Committee of Basic Law and a member of the Preparatory Committee of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.

He had been a member of the Legislative Council for 9 years. Mr. Wong was appointed as director of the Company

in May 1997.

Mr. Yin Yongli, aged 66, graduated from Shandong Finance Institute, the PRC. Mr. Yin is the chairman of China

Rightson Certified Public Accountants/Tianhua Certified Public Accountants since September 2001. He was the

chairman of another firm of auditors in the PRC during the period from 1998 to 2001. Before that, Mr. Yin spent

over 35 years in the petrochemical industry in the PRC as an accountant of Sinopec Corporation. From 1985 to

1988, he became the chief accountant of the financial planning department. From 1988 to 1998 he was the deputy

department head of the finance department. Mr. Yin was appointed as director of the Company in September 2004.

Senior Management

Mr. Yam Pui Hung, Robert, aged 38, is the qualified accountant and company secretary of the Company. Mr. Yam is

a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the

Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Yam holds a bachelor’s degree in accountancy and has

extensive experience in accounting, financial management and corporate finance. Mr. Yam joined the Company in

September 2004.
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Report of the Directors

The directors would like to present their repor t together with the audited accounts for the year ended 31 December 2005.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively

the “Group”) comprise the manufacturing and sale of por table electronics products. The principal activities of the major

subsidiaries are set out in note 8 to the accounts.

An analysis of the Group’s per formance for the year by business and geographical segments is set out in note 5 to the

accounts.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 28 of the annual repor t.

The directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.02 per share to shareholders whose names appear

on the register of members on 19 May 2006.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in proper ty, plant and equipment of the Group and of the Company are set out in note 6 to the

accounts.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in note 12 to the accounts.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year are set out in note 13 to the accounts.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2005 as calculated under the laws in Bermuda and the Company’s

bye-laws amounted to HK$96,374,000 (2004: Nil).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page

68.
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SHORT-TERM LOANS

Par ticular of the shor t-term loans of the Group are set out in note 15 to the accounts.

BORROWING COSTS

No interest was capitalised by the Group during the year (2004: Nil).

DIRECTORS

The directors during the year were:

Non-executive directors

Yang Xiaotang (Chairman)

Tong Baoan (Vice Chairman)

Executive directors

Fan Qingwu (Managing Director)

Hua Longxing

Independent non-executive directors

Chan Kay Cheung

Wong Po Yan

Yin Yongli

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) of the Company’s bye-laws, Messrs. Chan Kay Cheung and Wong Po Yan will retire by

rotation at the for thcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, of fer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received confirmation from each of the independent non-executive directors as regards their

independence to the Company, and considers them to be independent.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the for thcoming annual general meeting has a ser vice contract which is

not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutor y compensation.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Brief biographies of the directors of the Company are set out on page 13 of the annual repor t.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,

UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2005, the interests and shor t positions of the directors and chief executive of the Company in the

shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Par t

XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant

to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the

“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies, were as

follows:

Long position in shares of the Company

Approximate

Interest in percentage

underlying shares of the issued

pursuant to share capital of

Name of directors Capacity share options Total interest the Company

Yang Xiaotang Beneficial owner 4,000,000 4,000,000 0.37%

Tong Baoan Beneficial owner 3,800,000 3,800,000 0.35%

Fan Qingwu Beneficial owner 3,600,000 3,600,000 0.33%

Hua Longxing Beneficial owner 3,600,000 3,600,000 0.33%

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2005, none of the directors nor the chief executive of the Company and

their respective associates had any interests or shor t positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the

Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Par t XV of the SFO) which were recorded in the

register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the

Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinar y resolution passed on 20 June 2002, the Company adopted a new share option scheme (“Share

Option Scheme”) to replace an old option scheme. According to the Share Option Scheme, the board of directors of the

Company may grant options to any executive and non-executive directors of the Company, full time employees and par t-

time employees of the Group, advisors, consultants, distributors, suppliers, agents, customers, par tners, joint venture

par tners, promoters, ser vice providers to the Group. The purpose is to provide the par ticipants with the oppor tunity to

acquire proprietar y interests in the Company and to encourage par ticipants to work towards enhancing the value of the

Company.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options granted and to be granted under the Share

Option Scheme must not exceed 108,356,000 ordinar y shares, representing 10% of the issued share capital as at the

date of the annual repor t. The number of shares which might be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted

and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes adopted by the Company

must not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time. The maximum

entitlement of each par ticipant in any 12 month period must not exceed 1% of the shares in issue from time to time. No

share options were outstanding under the old option scheme.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

There was no requirement for a grantee to hold the option for a cer tain period before exercising the option unless

otherwise determined by the directors. The exercise period should be any period determined by the board of directors but

in any event the exercise period should not later than 10 years from the date of grant. The grantee must accept an option

within 21 days from the date of of fer by making a non-refundable payment of HK$1 to the Company.

The subscription price shall be at the discretion of the board of directors provided that it shall be not less than the

highest of (i) the closing price of the shares on the date of grant; (ii) the average of the closing prices of the shares for

the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a share on the date of grant.

The Share Option Scheme remains in force until 19 June 2012.

Details of the options outstanding during the year were as follows:

Options outstanding Options outstanding

Name as at 1/1/2005 Options granted as at 31/12/2005

Directors

Yang Xiaotang – 4,000,000 4,000,000

Tong Baoan – 3,800,000 3,800,000

Fan Qingwu – 3,600,000 3,600,000

Hua Longxing – 3,600,000 3,600,000

Total – 15,000,000 15,000,000

Aggregate of employees and other par ticipants – 13,450,000 13,450,000

– 28,450,000 28,450,000

The options were all granted on 25 October 2005 under the Share Option Scheme. The closing share price immediately

before the date of grant was HK$1.46. The options represent personal interest held by the directors as beneficial owners.

Grantees of such options are entitled to exercise the options at a price of HK$1.488 per share in the following periods:

(i) in respect of 40% of the options granted, from 1 November 2005 to 31 October 2008;

(ii) in respect of a fur ther 30% of the options granted, from 1 November 2006 to 31 October 2009; and

(iii) in respect of the remaining 30% of the options granted, from 1 November 2007 to 31 October 2010.

No options granted under the Share Option Scheme were exercised, lapsed or cancelled during 2005.

The average fair value of the options granted during the year, determined using the Black-Scholes valuation model, was

HK$0.571 per share. The significant inputs into the model were share price of HK$1.45 at the grant date, exercise price

shown above, standard deviation of expected share price returns of 63.6%, average expected life of options of 2.4 years,

and annual risk-free interest rate of approximately 4%. The volatility measured at the standard deviation of expected share

price returns is based on statistical analysis of daily share prices over one years immediately preceding the grant date.

Changes in these subjective input assumptions could materially af fect the estimation of the fair value of the options.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries or

fellow subsidiaries a par ty to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company or their respective associates (as

defined under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing

Rules”) to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body

corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries

was a par ty and in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the

end of the year or at any time during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected transactions entered into by the Group during the year are set out below:

Continuing connected transactions

Amount

Type of transactions Note HK$’000

Sales of products, samples and materials and provision of

after sales ser vice to the Philips Group i 3,694,588

Purchases of raw materials from the Philips Group ii 438,378

Sales of products, samples and materials to the CEC Group iii 4,804

Purchases of raw materials from the CEC Group iv 8,317

After sales repair and maintenance ser vices by the CEC Group v 1,493

Provision of canteen ser vices by the CEC Group vi 11,273

Fitment and decoration ser vices from the CEC Group vii 2,459

Rental arrangement with the CEC Group viii 7,283

Processing arrangements with the CEC Group ix 8,974

Note:

(i) Koninklijke Philips Electronics N.V. together with its group companies (the “Philips Group”), is a connected person of the Company

by vir tue of being a substantial shareholder of Shenzhen Sang Fei Consumer Communications Company Limited (“Sang Fei”), the

principal operating subsidiary of the Company.

Members of the Philips Group are the major customers of the Group. Sales to the Philips Group were based on a long-term

agreement in which the Philips Group was entitled to purchase goods from the Group at a price determined using a “cost plus”

basis and with reference to market rates.

(ii) Members of the Philips Group are the major suppliers of raw materials. Purchases of raw materials from the Philips Group were

based on a long term agreement and were carried out in the ordinar y course of business and on commercial terms and conditions

and with reference to market rates.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(iii) China Electronics Corporation together with its subsidiaries (the “CEC Group”) is a connected person of the Company by vir tue of

being the controlling shareholder of the Company.

Members of the CEC Group are the major customers of the Group. Sales to the CEC Group were based on a business ser vice

agreement and were carried out on commercial terms and conditions and with reference to market rates.

(iv) The Group from time to time purchases raw materials from members of the CEC Group. Purchases of raw materials from the CEC

Group were based on a business ser vice agreement and were carried out in the ordinar y course of business and on commercial

terms and conditions and with reference to market rates.

(v) The Group engaged Shenzhen SED ARC Co., Ltd. for after sales product repair and maintenance ser vices in respect of its own-

branded products. The repair and maintenance ser vices were based on a business ser vice agreement and carried out on

commercial terms and conditions and with reference to market rates.

(vi) Shenzhen Sang Da Baili Electronics Co., Ltd. provides canteen ser vices to the staf f of the Group. The canteen ser vices were

based on a business ser vice agreement and the fee were calculated by reference to actual consumption and an agreed fixed

premium and were on commercial terms and conditions and with reference to market rates.

(vii) The Group engaged members of the CEC Group to under take renovation works in connection with the expansion of the Group’s

production premises. The fitment and decoration services were based on a business ser vice agreement and were on commercial

terms and conditions and with reference to market rates.

(viii) The production facilities and some of the staff quar ters of the Group were located within an industrial complex owned by members

of the CEC Group. The rentals were based on lease agreements entered into by the relevant par ties and the Group and were

calculated on commercial terms and conditions and with reference to market rates.

(ix) The Group secured dedicated processing ser vices of sur face mount assembly production lines from members of the CEC Group.

The processing services were based on service contracts entered into by the relevant par ties and the Group and were carried out

on commercial terms and conditions and with reference to market rates.

Pursuant to the resolutions passed in the Company’s special general meeting on 14 July 2004 and the written approval

obtained from CEC, details of which were included in the circular dated 11 August 2005, the above connected

transactions were approved by the independent shareholders of the Company. The Company has subsequently revised the

cap in relation to the provision of canteen ser vices from Shenzhen Sang Da Baili Electronics Co., Ltd. Details of which

were included in the announcement of the Company dated 6 Januar y 2006.

In the opinion of the independent non-executive directors of the Company, the above transactions were carried out in the

ordinar y and usual course of business of the Group, on normal commercial terms and were in accordance with the

relevant agreements governing them on terms that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Group and the

shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditors have confirmed that the above transactions:

• had been approved by the board of directors of the Company;

• were in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;

• were entered into in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreements governing such transactions; and

• had not exceeded the cap approved by the board of directors of the Company as described in the circulars of the

Company dated 21 June 2004 and 11 August 2005 and the announcement dated 6 Januar y 2006.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this repor t, the following directors of the Company are considered to have interests

in businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group:

Nature of

Principal business director’s interest

Name of director Name of entity of the entity in the entity

Yang Xiaotang China Electronics Investment holdings President and legal

(note c) Corporation (note a) representative

Tong Baoan China Electronics Investment holdings Director

Corporation (note a)

China Electronics Industr y Investment holdings President and legal

Corporation (note b) representative

Shenzhen SED Industr y Investment holdings Chairman

Co., Ltd. (note b)

Fan Qingwu China Electronics Industr y Investment holdings Vice president

Corporation (note b)

CEC Wireless R&D Co. Research and development Director

Ltd. (note d) of mobile handsets

Note:

(a) China Electronics Corporation (“CEC”) is the controlling shareholder of the Company. CEC is a state-owned nationwide electronics

and information technology conglomerate established under the laws of the People’s Republic of China, and has other

subsidiaries and associates engaged in mobile handset related businesses which compete or are likely to compete with the

business of the Group.

(b) China Electronics Industr y Corporation and Shenzhen SED Industr y Co., Ltd. have subsidiaries or associates engaged in the

mobile handset related businesses which compete or are likely to compete with the business of the Group. China Electronics

Industr y Corporation is wholly owned by CEC. Shenzhen SED Industr y Co., Ltd. is a company whose A shares are listed on the

Shenzhen Stock Exchange and is indirectly owned as to approximately 55.34% by CEC as at the date of this repor t.

(c) Mr. Yang has ceased to be the president of CEC as at the date of this repor t.

(d) CEC Wireless R&D Co. Ltd. has ceased to be a subsidiary of CEC as at the date of this repor t.

The abovementioned competing businesses are operated and managed by independent management and administration.

In addition, the directors of the Company consider that the business model of and markets ser ved by the Group are

dif ferent from those companies. The board of the Company can exercise independent judgement and is always acting for

the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. Accordingly, the Group is capable of carr ying on its

businesses independently of, and at arm’s length from, the competing businesses mentioned above.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2005, the register of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of

the SFO showed that the following shareholders had notified the Company of relevant interests in the issued capital of the

Company.

Percentage of

Name of shareholder Number of shares held shareholding

China Electronics Corporation (BVI) Holdings

Company Limited (“CEC BVI”) 812,500,000 74.98%

CEC (Note 1) 812,500,000 74.98%

Devon For tune Limited (“Devon For tune”) 91,421,608 8.43%

Chan Chak Shing (Note 2) 95,546,608 8.81%

Note:

(1) CEC holds 100% interest in CEC BVI and is deemed to be interested in the shares held by CEC BVI. The directors regard CEC as

being the ultimate holding company of the Group.

(2) This number of shares represents the aggregate of (i) Mr. Chan Chak Shing’s family interest of 4,125,000 shares and (ii)

corporate interest of 91,421,608 shares held by Devon For tune. As Mr. Chan Chak Shing holds 100% interest in Devon For tune,

the interests of Devon For tune are deemed to be the interests of Mr. Chan Chak Shing.

All the interests disclosed above represent long position in the shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2005, no person or corporation had any interest or shor t position in the

shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-laws or the laws in Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has

purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the percentages of sales for the year attributable to the Group’s major customers are as follows:

Sales

– the largest customer 38%

– five largest customers combined 83%
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The percentages of purchases for the year attributable to the Group’s major suppliers are as follows:

Purchases

– the largest supplier 9%

– five largest suppliers combined 36%

Philips Group is the beneficial owner of four of the five largest customers and one of the five largest suppliers of the

Group. Details of the transactions are set out in the section headed “Connected Transactions” above.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of

the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major customers or suppliers noted above.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.20 OF THE LISTING RULES

As at 31 December 2005, the Group had in aggregate approximately HK$947 million (RMB985 million) due from members

of the Philips Group. The receivables were mainly trade balances which arose from sales of products including goods,

samples and materials in the ordinar y course of business of the Group with a small amount which represented

reimbursement for taxation and administrative expenses paid during the year by the Group. Such amounts are to be

settled in accordance with normal trade credit terms ranging from 45 to 60 days after invoice and are interest-free within

credit period. The receivables are mainly covered then by bank guarantee or by documents against acceptance

arrangements.

The Philips Group is a connected person of the Company by vir tue of being a substantial shareholder of the Sang Fei, the

principal operating subsidiar y of the Company. Details of the transactions are set out in the section headed “Connected

Transactions” above.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other disclosure required to be made by the Company pursuant to Rule 13.20 of the

Listing Rules.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the directors of the

Company, as at the date of this repor t, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises Messrs. Chan Kay Cheung, Wong Po Yan and Yin Yongli, who are independent non-

executive directors of the Company. The audit committee examined the accounting principles and practices adopted by the

Group and discussed with management its internal controls and accounts. During the year, the audit committee has

reviewed the unaudited interim accounts for the six months ended 30 June 2005 and the audited accounts for the year

ended 31 December 2005.

AUDITORS

The accounts have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, of fer themselves for

reappointment.

On behalf of the Board

Yang Xiaotang

Chairman

Hong Kong, 10 April 2006



25

CHINA ELECTRONICS CORPORATION HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2005

Auditors’ Report

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22/F, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong
Telephone (852) 2289 8888
Facsimile (852) 2810 9888
www.pwchk.com

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

CHINA ELECTRONICS CORPORATION HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the accounts on page 26 to 67 which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles

generally accepted in Hong Kong.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation of accounts which give a true and fair view. In preparing

accounts which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied

consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on those accounts and to repor t our opinion

solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We

do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this repor t.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of

Cer tified Public Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and

disclosures in the accounts. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the

directors in the preparation of the accounts, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the circumstances

of the Company and the Group, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and per formed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessar y

in order to provide us with suf ficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether the accounts are free from

material misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information

in the accounts. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion the accounts give a true and fair view of the state of af fairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31

December 2005 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended and have been properly prepared in

accordance with the disclosure requirement of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Cer tified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 10 April 2006
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(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

As at 31 December

Note 2005 2004

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Proper ty, plant and equipment 6 79,051 119,402

Intangible assets 7 14,113 3,498

Deferred income tax assets 22(b) 4,514 –

97,678 122,900

Current assets

Inventories 9 447,034 388,620

Trade and other receivables 10 1,084,944 931,391

Cash and cash equivalents 11 306,381 217,433

1,838,359 1,537,444

Total assets 1,936,037 1,660,344

EQUITY

Capital and reserves attributable

to the Company’s equity holders

Issued equity 12 370,074 373,750

Other reserves 13 35,062 19,204

Retained earnings/(accumulated losses)

– Proposed final dividend 21,671 –

– Others 3,209 (23,713)

430,016 369,241

Minority interests 138,379 124,884

Total equity 568,395 494,125

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 14 1,129,194 768,237

Current income tax liabilities 5,573 3,537

Shor t-term bank loans 15 230,769 392,231

Provision for warranty 16 2,106 2,214

Total liabilities 1,367,642 1,166,219

Total equity and liabilities 1,936,037 1,660,344

Net current assets 470,717 371,225

Total assets less current liabilities 568,395 494,125

The notes on page 31 to 67 are an integral par t of these consolidated accounts.

Yang Xiaotang Fan Qingwu

Director Director
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As at 31 December

Note 2005 2004

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Proper ty, plant and equipment 6 605 681

Investments in subsidiaries 8 263,900 260,639

264,505 261,320

Current assets

Other receivables 10 2,133 800

Cash and cash equivalents 11 169,574 137,342

171,707 138,142

Total assets 436,212 399,462

EQUITY

Capital and reserves attributable

to the Company’s equity holders

Share capital 12 335,891 411,740

Other reserves 13 68,244 140,263

Retained earnings/(accumulated losses)

– Proposed final dividend 21,671 –

– Others 6,459 (154,440)

Total equity 432,265 397,563

Current liabilities

Other payables 14 3,947 1,899

Total equity and liabilities 436,212 399,462

Net current assets 167,760 136,243

Total assets less current liabilities 432,265 397,563

The notes on page 31 to 67 are an integral par t of these consolidated accounts.

Yang Xiaotang Fan Qingwu

Director Director
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The notes on page 31 to 67 are an integral par t of these consolidated accounts.

Year ended 31 December

Note 2005 2004

Sales 5 4,768,526 4,590,123

Cost of goods sold 18 (4,516,467) (4,352,639)

Gross profit 252,059 237,484

Other gains – net 17 18,519 6,808

Selling and marketing costs 18 (41,706) (43,032)

Administrative expenses 18 (127,425) (103,623)

Operating profit 101,447 97,637

Finance costs 21 (11,501) (21,180)

Profit after finance costs 89,946 76,457

Provision for impairment on goodwill – (61,498)

Profit before income tax 89,946 14,959

Income tax expense 22(a) (5,598) (8,518)

Profit for the year 84,348 6,441

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company 23 49,899 (19,263)

Minority interests 34,449 25,704

84,348 6,441

Earnings/(loss) per share for profit/(loss) attributable to the

equity holders of the Company during the year

(expressed in HK cents per share)

– basic 24 4.61 (2.17)

– diluted 24 N/A N/A

Dividend 25 21,671 –



29

CHINA ELECTRONICS CORPORATION HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2005

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2005

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

The notes on page 31 to 67 are an integral par t of these consolidated accounts.

Attributable to equity holders

of the Company

Retained

earnings/

Issued Other (accumulated Minority

equity reserves losses) interests Total

(note 12) (note 13)

Balance at 1 Januar y 2004, as

previously repor ted as equity 169,437 13,100 1,654 – 184,191

Balance at 1 Januar y 2004, as

previously separately repor ted

as minority interests – – – 99,180 99,180

Balance at 1 Januar y 2004,

as restated 169,437 13,100 1,654 99,180 283,371

Issue of shares 142,130 – – – 142,130

Arising from reverse acquisition 62,183 – – – 62,183

Appropriation to other reser ves – 6,104 (6,104) – –

(Loss)/profit for the year – – (19,263) 25,704 6,441

Balance at 31 December 2004 373,750 19,204 (23,713) 124,884 494,125

Balance at 1 Januar y 2005, as

previously repor ted as equity 373,750 19,204 (23,713) – 369,241

Balance at 1 Januar y 2005, as

previously separately repor ted

as minority interests – – – 124,884 124,884

Balance at 1 Januar y 2005,

as restated 373,750 19,204 (23,713) 124,884 494,125

Utilisation of contributed surplus

against accumulated losses (3,676) – 3,676 – –

Dividend paid by a subsidiar y

related to 2004 – – – (23,282) (23,282)

Share option granted – 6,572 – – 6,572

Currency translation dif ferences – 4,304 – 2,328 6,632

Appropriation to other reser ves – 4,982 (4,982) – –

Profit for the year – – 49,899 34,449 84,348

Balance at 31 December 2005 370,074 35,062 24,880 138,379 568,395
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The notes on page 31 to 67 are an integral par t of these consolidated accounts.

Year ended 31 December

Note 2005 2004

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations 26 314,835 85,576

Interest paid (11,501) (21,445)

Income tax paid (8,076) (7,646)

Net cash generated from operating activities 295,258 56,485

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received 4,697 916

Purchase of proper ty, plant and equipment and

intangible assets (excluding goodwill) 6,7 (26,935) (82,651)

Proceed on disposal of proper ty, plant and equipment 26 672 112

Net cash used in investing activities (21,566) (81,623)

Cash flows from financing activities

Issue of ordinar y shares – 142,130

Transaction costs of reversed acquisition – (5,975)

Dividend paid to minority interests (23,282) –

Proceeds from bank loans 1,363,248 1,470,621

Repayment of bank loans borrowed (1,524,710) (1,387,649)

Net cash (used in)/inflow from financing activities (184,744) 219,127

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 88,948 193,989

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 217,433 23,444

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 11 306,381 217,433
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands

and continued in Bermuda with limited liability. The Company has its shares listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong

Kong Limited.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) comprise the manufacturing

and sale of por table electronics products.

The address of the Company’s registered of fice is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

These consolidated accounts are presented in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollar (HK$), unless otherwise

stated. These consolidated accounts have been approved for issue by the board of directors on 10 April 2006.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated accounts are set out below.

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

(a) Preparation of accounts

The consolidated accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries (have in after collectively referred to

as the “Group”) have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Repor ting Standards

(“HKFRS”). The consolidated accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of accounts in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of cer tain critical accounting

estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the

Company’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or

areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the accounts, are disclosed in note 4.

(b) The acquisition

On 10 December 2003, China Electronics Corporation (“CEC”), the Company and the Company’s

then holding company, Winsan International Holdings Limited entered into a sale and purchase

agreement to acquire CEC’s 65% equity interest in Shenzhen Sang Fei Consumer Communications

Company Limited (“Sang Fei”) (the “Acquisition”), at a consideration of HK$260,000,000. The

consideration was satisfied by the issuance of 6,500,000,000 shares of the Company (the

“Consideration Shares”) to CEC. The Acquisition was completed on 24 September 2004.

Under HKFRS and as stated in the circular to the shareholders dated 21 June 2004, the Acquisition

has been accounted for as a reverse acquisition since the issuance of the Consideration Shares in

exchange for the 65% equity interest in Sang Fei resulted in CEC becoming the controlling

shareholder of the Company. For accounting purpose, Sang Fei is regarded as the acquirer while the

Company and its then subsidiaries (the “Winsan Group”) are deemed to have been acquired by

Sang Fei.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) The acquisition (continued)

These consolidated accounts have been prepared as a continuation of the consolidated accounts of

Sang Fei and accordingly:

(i) the assets and liabilities of Sang Fei are recognised and measured at their historical

carr ying values prior to the completion of the Acquisition;

(ii) the retained earnings and other equity balances recognised in these consolidated accounts

are those of Sang Fei; and

(iii) the amount recognised as issued equity, which consists of share capital and share premium,

has been determined by adding to the issued equity of Sang Fei immediately before the

completion of the Acquisition the cost of the acquisition of the Winsan Group. The equity

structure (i.e. the number and type of shares issued) reflects the equity structure of the

Company including the Consideration Shares.

(c) The adoption of new/revised HKFRS

In 2005, the Group adopted the new/revised standards and interpretations of HKFRS below, which

are relevant to its operations. The 2004 comparatives have been amended as required, in

accordance with the relevant requirements.

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 2 Inventories

HKAS 7 Cash Flow Statements

HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

HKAS 10 Events after the Balance Sheet Date

HKAS 16 Proper ty, Plant and Equipment

HKAS 17 Leases

HKAS 21 The Ef fects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs

HKAS 24 Related Par ty Disclosures

HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Disclosures and Presentation

HKAS 33 Earnings per Share

HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets

HKAS 38 Intangible Assets

HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

HKAS-Int 15 Operating Leases – Incentives

HKFRS 2 Share-based Payments

HKFRS 3 Business Combinations
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2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c) The adoption of new/revised HKFRS (continued)

The adoption of new/revised HKASs 1, 2, 7, 8, 10, 16, 17, 21, 23, 24, 27, 32, 33, 39 and HKAS-

Int 15 did not result in substantial changes to the Group’s accounting policies. In summary:

– HKAS 1 has af fected the presentation of minority interest and other disclosures.

– HKASs 2, 7, 8, 10, 16, 17, 23, 27, 32, 33, 39 and HKAS-Int 15 had no material ef fect on

the Group’s policies.

– HKAS 21 had no material ef fect on the Group’s policy. The functional currency of each of the

consolidated entities has been re-evaluated based on the guidance to the revised standard.

The Company adopted Hong Kong dollars as its presentation currency while its functional

currency is Renminbi. All other Group entities have the same functional currency as the

presentation currency of respective entity financial statements.

– HKAS 24 has af fected the identification of related par ties and some other related-par ty

disclosures.

The adoption of HKFRS 2 has resulted in a change in the accounting policy for share-based

payments. Until 31 December 2004, the provision of share options to employees did not result in

an expense in the income statement. Ef fective on 1 Januar y 2005, the Group expenses the cost of

share options in the income statement. As there was no share option outstanding as at 31

December 2004, there is no ef fect of adopting this new accounting policy.

The adoption of HKFRS 3, HKAS 36 and HKAS 38 results in a change in the accounting policy for

goodwill. Until 31 December 2004, goodwill was:

– amor tised on a straight line basis over a period of 10 years; and

– assessed for an indication of impairment at each balance sheet date.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c) The adoption of new/revised HKFRS (continued)

In accordance with the provisions of HKFRS 3 (note 2.6):

– the Group ceased amor tisation of goodwill from 1 Januar y 2005;

– accumulated amor tisation as at 31 December 2004 has been eliminated with a

corresponding decrease in the cost of goodwill; and

– from the year ended 31 December 2005 onwards, goodwill is tested annually for

impairment, as well as when there is indication of impairment.

As provision for impairment on the full amount of the goodwill has been made at 31 December

2004, there is no ef fect of adopting this new accounting policy.

The Group has reassessed the useful lives of its intangible assets in accordance with the

provisions of HKAS 38. No adjustment resulted from this reassessment.

There is no material ef fect of adopting new/revised HKFRS to the consolidated accounts.

The following new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards have been

published that are mandator y for the Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1 Januar y

2006 or later periods but which the Group has not early adopted.

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Capital Disclosures

HKAS 19 (Amendment) Actuarial Gains and Losses, Group Plans and Disclosures

HKAS 39 (Amendment) Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of Forecast Intragroup Transactions

HKAS 39 (Amendment) The Fair Value Option

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 4

(Amendment) Financial Guarantee Contracts

HKFRS 1 and HKFRS 6 First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Repor ting Standards and

(Amendment) Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources

HKFRS 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

HKFRS-Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease

HKFRS-Int 5 Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, Restoration and

Environmental Rehabilitation Funds

HK(IFRIC)-Int 6 Liabilities arising from Par ticipating in a Specific Market – Waste

Electrical and Electronic Equipment

The directors are of the opinion that HKAS 19 (Amendment), HKFRS 1 and HKFRS 6 (Amendment),

HKFRS 6 are not relevant to the Group’s operations and the adoption of the remaining new

standards, amendments and interpretations will not result in substantial changes to the Group’s

accounting policies.
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2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated accounts include the accounts of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to 31

December.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over which the Group has the power to

govern the financial and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of

the voting rights. The existence and ef fect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or

conver tible are considered when assessing whether the Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-

consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The

cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and

liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination

are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any minority

interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable

net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net

assets of the subsidiar y acquired, the dif ference is recognised directly in the income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are

eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an

impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where

necessar y to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for

impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend

received and receivable.

2.3 Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products or ser vices that are

subject to risks and returns that are dif ferent from those of other business segments. A geographical

segment is engaged in providing products or ser vices within a par ticular economic environment that are

subject to risks and returns that are dif ferent from those of segments operating in other economic

environments.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the accounts of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of

the primar y economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The

consolidated accounts are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s presentation

currency, while the Company’s functional currency is Renminbi.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates

prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the

settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetar y

assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of which has the currency of a

hyperinflationar y economy) that have a functional currency dif ferent from the presentation currency

are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

– assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at

the date of that balance sheet;

– income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates

(unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative ef fect of the rates

prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at

the dates of the transactions); and

– all resulting exchange dif ferences are recognised as a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange dif ferences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign entities

and of borrowings are taken to shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange

dif ferences are recognised in the income statement as par t of the gain or loss on sale.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Proper ty, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation and impairment losses.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost may

also include transfers from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency

purchases of proper ty, plant and equipment.
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2.5 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carr ying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as

appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the

Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed

in the income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of proper ty, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate cost

to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

– Leasehold improvements 5 years or over the lease term, which is shor ter

– Plant and machiner y 3-4 years

– Motor vehicles 5 years

– Furniture and fixtures 3-5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance

sheet date. An asset’s carr ying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the

asset’s carr ying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

During the year, the directors re-visited the residual value of proper ty, plant and equipment and adjusted it

to zero. The ef fect of this change in accounting estimate is to decrease the operating profit for the year by

HK$8,091,000.

2.6 Intangible assets

(a) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share

of the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiar y at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on

acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill is tested annually for

impairment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the

disposal of an entity include the carr ying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing.

If the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiar y at the

date of acquisition exceeds the cost of acquisition, the excess should be recognised immediately in

the income statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.6 Intangible assets (continued)

(b) Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire

and bring to use the specific software. These costs are amor tised over their estimated useful lives.

Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as

an expense as incurred. Costs that are directly associated with the production of identifiable and

unique software products controlled by the Group, and that will probably generate economic

benefits exceeding costs beyond one year, are recognised as intangible assets. Direct costs include

the software development employee costs and an appropriate por tion of relevant overheads.

Computer software development costs recognised as assets are amor tised over their estimated

useful lives.

(c) Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Costs incurred on development projects relating to the

design and testing of new or improved products are recognised as an intangible asset where the

technical feasibility and intention of completing the product under development has been

demonstrated and the resources are available to do so, costs are identifiable and there is an ability

to sell or use the asset that will generate probable future economic benefits. Such development

costs are recognised as an asset and amor tised on a straight-line basis over a period of not more

than 5 years to reflect the pattern in which the related economic benefits are recognised.

Development costs that do not meet the above criteria are expensed as incurred. Development

costs previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

2.7 Impairment of assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amor tisation, which are at least tested annually

for impairment are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the

carr ying amount may not be recoverable. Assets that are subject to amor tisation are reviewed for

impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carr ying amount may not be

recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carr ying amount

exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to

sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels

for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
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2.8 Investments

The Group classifies its investments in the following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, and available-for-sale financial assets. The

classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired. Management determines

the classification of its investments at initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at ever y

repor ting date.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This categor y has two sub-categories: financial assets held for trading, and those designated at fair

value through profit or loss at inception. A financial asset is classified in this categor y if acquired

principally for the purpose of selling in the shor t term or if so designated by management.

Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets

in this categor y are classified as current assets if they are either held for trading or are expected to

be realised within 12 months of the balance sheet date. During the year, the Group did not hold any

investments in this categor y.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that

are not quoted in an active market. They arise when the Group provides money, goods or ser vices

directly to a debtor with no intention of trading the receivable. They are included in current assets,

except for maturities greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date. These are classified as

non-current assets. Loans and receivables are included in trade and other receivables in the

balance sheet (note 2.10).

(c) Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments

and fixed maturities that the Group’s management has the positive intention and ability to hold to

maturity. During the year, the Group did not hold any investments in this categor y.

(d) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this categor y or

not classified in any of the other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless

management intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

During the year, the Group did not hold any investments in this categor y.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8 Investments (continued)

(d) Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

Purchases and sales of investments are recognised on trade-date – the date on which the Group

commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus

transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Investments

are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have

been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are

subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments are

carried at amor tised cost using the ef fective interest method. Realised and unrealised gains and

losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss’ categor y are included in the income statement in the period in which they arise. Unrealised

gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of non-monetar y securities classified as

available-for-sale are recognised in equity. When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold

or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments are included in the income statement as gains

or losses from investment securities.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial

asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.

2.9 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in,

first-out method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises design costs, raw materials,

direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It

excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinar y course of

business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

2.10 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amor tised

cost using the ef fective interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade

and other receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to

collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables. The amount of the provision is the

dif ference between the asset’s carr ying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,

discounted at the ef fective interest rate. The amount of the provision is recognised in the income

statement.

2.11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other shor t-term highly

liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.
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2.12 Share capital

Ordinar y shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares

or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.13 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Transaction costs are

incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or

financial liability. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amor tised cost; any dif ference between the

proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the income statement over

the period of the borrowings using the ef fective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer

settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

2.14 Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporar y dif ferences arising between

the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carr ying amounts in the consolidated accounts. Deferred

income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the

balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the

deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be

available against which the temporar y dif ferences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporar y dif ferences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except

where the timing of the reversal of the temporar y dif ference is controlled by the Group and it is probable

that the temporar y dif ference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

2.15 Provision

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past

events; it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and

the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in

settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even

if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may

be small.

The Group recognises a provision for repair or replacement of products still under warranty at the balance

sheet date. This provision is calendared based on past histor y of the level of repairs and replacements.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.16 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existent will only be

confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncer tain future events not wholly within the

control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised

because it is not probable that outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation

cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the accounts. When a change in the

probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, they will then be recognised as a provision.

2.17 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value for the sale of goods, net of value-added tax. Revenue is recognised

when the goods are delivered to customers, the customers has accepted the goods and collectibility of the

related receivables is reasonably assured.

Interest income is recognised on a time propor tion basis using the ef fective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

2.18 Employee benefits

(a) Pension obligations

The Group operates a mandator y provident fund scheme (“MPF”) for the eligible employees in Hong

Kong. The Group’s contributions to MPF are set at 5% of employees’ salaries, including basic

salaries and other cash allowances and are expensed as incurred.

The principal operating subsidiar y, Sang Fei, that operating in the People’s Republic of China

(“PRC”) has to make contribution to staf f retirement scheme managed by local government

authorities in accordance with the relevant rules and regulations. Contributions to these schemes

are charged to the profit and loss account as and when incurred.

(b) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision

is made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of ser vices rendered by employees

up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.



43

CHINA ELECTRONICS CORPORATION HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2005

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.18 Employee benefits (continued)

(c) Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments are recognised as a liability when the Group has a present

legal or constructive obligation as a result of ser vices rendered by employees and a reliable

estimate of the obligation can be made.

Liabilities for profit sharing and bonus plans are expected to be settled within 12 months and are

measured at the amounts expected to be paid when they are settled.

(d) Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation plan. The fair value of the

employee ser vices received in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an expense.

The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference to the fair

value of the options granted, excluding the impact of any non-market vesting conditions. Non-market

vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number of options that are expected to

become exercisable. At each balance sheet date, the entity reviews its estimates of the number of

options that are expected to become exercisable. It recognises the impact of the revision of original

estimates, if any, in the income statement, and a corresponding adjustment to equity over the

remaining vesting period.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital

(nominal value) and share premium when the options are exercised.

2.19 Operating leases (as the lessee)

Leases in which a significant por tion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are

classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from

the lessor) are expensed in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

2.20 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Group’s accounts in

the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity

risk and cash flow and fair value interest rate risk.

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The foreign exchange risks of the Group occur due to the fact that the Group has business activities

denominated in foreign currencies, primarily with respect to the US dollars, Renminbi, Euro and

Japanese Yen. The Group has entered into foreign exchange forward contracts to manage the risk

arising from its operations. Never theless, the conversion of Renminbi into foreign currencies is

subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC

government.

(b) Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. It has policies in place to ensure that

sales are made to customers with an appropriate credit histor y. The Group per forms ongoing credit

evaluations for its customers’ financial condition and generally does not require collateral on trade

receivables. The Group maintains a provision for doubtful debts and actual losses have been within

management’s expectation.

(c) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining suf ficient cash and the availability of funding

through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. Due to the dynamic nature of the

underlying businesses, the Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit

lines available.

(d) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group does not have significant interest-bearing assets, the Group’s income and operating

cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates.

3.2 Fair value estimation

The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments or trade receivables and payables are assumed to

approximate their values. The fair values of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by

discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest that is available to the Group

for similar financial instruments.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by

definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of

causing a material adjustment to the carr ying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are

discussed below.

(a) Estimated impairment of non-financial assets

The Group tests annually whether non-financial assets, mainly including proper ty, plant and equipment and

intangible assets has suf fered any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 2.7.

The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been determined based on value-in-use

calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates.

(b) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in

determining the worldwide provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for

which the ultimate tax determination is uncer tain during the ordinar y course of business. The Group

recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be

due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is dif ferent from the amounts that were initially

recorded, such dif ferences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which

such determination is made.

(c) Share option

The Group operates a share option scheme. The fair value of the options granted during the year (note

12(c)) is determined by using valuation techniques. The Group uses its judgement to select the valuation

method and make assumptions for the significant inputs into the valuation model. At each balance sheet

date, the Group reviews its estimates and recognises the impact of the revision of original estimates, if

any, in the income statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Primary reporting format – business segments

The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and sale of por table electronics products.

Philips Own OEM other

branded mobile branded mobile products and

handset products handset products other operations Total

2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004

Sales 3,349,265 4,149,406 1,063,387 368,665 355,874 72,052 4,768,526 4,590,123

Segment results 118,412 182,718 89,487 39,833 44,160 14,933 252,059 237,484

Unallocated revenues 18,519 916

Unallocated costs (169,131) (140,763)

Operating profits 101,447 97,637

Finance costs (11,501) (21,180)

Profit after finance costs 89,946 76,457

Provision for impairment

on goodwill – (61,498)

Profit before income tax 89,946 14,959

Income tax expenses (5,598) (8,518)

Profit for the year 84,348 6,441

Segment assets 997,513 728,981 43,428 65,876 9,618 6,951 1,050,559 801,808

Unallocated assets 885,478 858,536

Total assets 1,936,037 1,660,344

Segment liabilities 63,090 30,476 3,718 5,409 – – 66,808 35,885

Unallocated liabilities 1,300,834 1,130,334

Total liabilities 1,367,642 1,166,219

Capital expenditures 26,935 82,651

Depreciation/amor tisation

charge 57,863 45,837

Impairment charge 21,024 86,081
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Secondary reporting format – geographical segments

The Group’s three business segments operate in four main geographical areas – Mainland China, Europe, Asia and

Hong Kong. The segment sales based on the geographical location of its customers are presented below:

Sales

2005 2004

Mainland China 2,256,707 2,116,578

Europe 690,062 1,528,452

Asia excluding Mainland China and Hong Kong 606,578 199,375

Hong Kong 1,215,179 745,718

4,768,526 4,590,123

No segment assets and liabilities are presented as over 90% of the Group’s assets are located in Mainland China.
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6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group

Leasehold Plant and Motor Furniture

improvements machinery vehicles and fixtures Total

At 1 Januar y 2004

Cost 25,695 209,414 2,146 23,701 260,956

Accumulated depreciation (20,882) (141,592) (1,114) (9,346) (172,934)

Net book amount 4,813 67,822 1,032 14,355 88,022

Year ended 31 December 2004

Opening net book amount 4,813 67,822 1,032 14,355 88,022

Acquisition of subsidiar y 77 – – 40 117

Additions 7,673 67,807 749 5,586 81,815

Depreciation charge (1,042) (38,464) (402) (3,173) (43,081)

Impairment charge – (3,830) (58) (3,471) (7,359)

Disposals (3) (53) – (56) (112)

Closing net book amount 11,518 93,282 1,321 13,281 119,402

At 31 December 2004

Cost 33,466 276,074 2,887 25,354 337,781

Accumulated depreciation

and impairment (21,948) (182,792) (1,566) (12,073) (218,379)

Net book amount 11,518 93,282 1,321 13,281 119,402

Year ended 31 December 2005

Opening net book amount 11,518 93,282 1,321 13,281 119,402

Additions 3,809 6,300 335 3,393 13,837

Depreciation charge (3,481) (42,864) (456) (8,533) (55,334)

Exchange dif ferences 195 1,430 10 179 1,814

Disposals (58) (568) – (42) (668)

Closing net book amount 11,983 57,580 1,210 8,278 79,051

At 31 December 2005

Cost 37,834 286,627 3,265 29,068 356,794

Accumulated depreciation

and impairment (25,851) (229,047) (2,055) (20,790) (277,743)

Net book amount 11,983 57,580 1,210 8,278 79,051

Depreciation expense of HK$43,944,000 (2004: HK$42,549,000) has been expensed in cost of goods sold,

HK$225,000 (2004: HK$97,000) in selling and marketing costs and HK$11,165,000 (2004: HK$7,794,000) in

administrative expenses.

Lease rentals amounting to HK$16,168,000 (2004: HK$14,734,000) relating to the lease of proper ty and

machiner y are included in the income statement.
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6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Company

Furniture

Motor vehicles and fixtures Total

At 1 Januar y 2004

Cost 118 137 255

Accumulated depreciation (47) (91) (138)

Net book amount 71 46 117

Year ended 31 December 2004

Opening net book amount 71 46 117

Additions 684 40 724

Depreciation charge (57) (10) (67)

Disposals (59) (34) (93)

Closing net book amount 639 42 681

At 31 December 2004

Cost 684 52 736

Accumulated depreciation (45) (10) (55)

Net book amount 639 42 681

Year ended 31 December 2005

Opening net book amount 639 42 681

Additions – 72 72

Depreciation charge (137) (11) (148)

Closing net book amount 502 103 605

At 31 December 2005

Cost 684 124 808

Accumulated depreciation (182) (21) (203)

Net book amount 502 103 605
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7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS – GROUP

Computer

Goodwill Software Total

At 1 Januar y 2004

Cost – 9,773 9,773

Accumulated amor tisation – (5,932) (5,932)

Net book amount – 3,841 3,841

Year ended 31 December 2004

Opening net book amount – 3,841 3,841

Reverse acquisition of a subsidiar y 63,075 – 63,075

Additions – 836 836

Impairment charge (61,498) – (61,498)

Amor tisation charge (1,577) (1,179) (2,756)

Closing net book amount – 3,498 3,498

At 31 December 2004

Cost 63,075 10,609 73,684

Accumulated amor tisation and impairment (63,075) (7,111) (70,186)

Net book amount – 3,498 3,498

Year ended 31 December 2005

Opening net book amount – 3,498 3,498

Additions – 13,098 13,098

Exchange dif ferences – 46 46

Amor tisation charge – (2,529) (2,529)

Closing net book amount – 14,113 14,113

At 31 December 2005

Cost 63,075 23,918 86,993

Accumulated amor tisation and impairment (63,075) (9,805) (72,880)

Net book amount – 14,113 14,113

Amor tisation of HK$137,000 (2004: Nil) is included in the cost of goods sold; HK$32,000 (2004:Nil) in selling

and marketing costs; and HK$2,360,000 (2004: HK$2,756,000) in administrative expenses in the income

statement.
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8. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES – COMPANY

2005 2004

Investments in subsidiaries – unlisted shares, at cost 260,000 260,000

Amounts due from subsidiaries 3,900 639

263,900 260,639

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2005.

Name Place of Incorporation Principal activities and Particulars of issued Interest

and kind of legal entity place of operation share capital held

Indirectly held:

Sang Fei PRC, a Sino-foreign equity PRC, manufacture and Registered capital of 65%

joint venture company sale of por table US$33,000,000

electronics products

China Electronics Hong Kong, limited Hong Kong, provision of 2 ordinar y shares 100%

Corporation company group management of HK$1 each

Management services

Limited

9. INVENTORIES – GROUP

2005 2004

Raw materials 284,703 216,064

Work in progress 100,139 109,726

Finished goods 62,192 62,830

447,034 388,620

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in cost of goods sold amounted to HK$4,325,554,000

(2004:HK$4,123,676,000).

Written down of inventories to net realisable value of HK$21,024,000 (2004:HK$17,224,000) has been expensed

in administrative expenses during the year.
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10. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Group Company

2005 2004 2005 2004

Trade receivables (note (a)) 1,010,140 801,085 – –

Notes receivables 1,981 3,255 – –

Other receivables from related par ties 26,583 25,240 – –

Prepayments and deposits 11,868 27,867 484 791

Value-added tax refundable 21,000 65,690 – –

Other receivables 13,372 8,254 1,649 9

1,084,944 931,391 2,133 800

The Directors are of the opinion that the carr ying amounts of trade and other receivables approximate their fair

values.

(a) The majority of the Group’s sales are on letter of credit or documents against payment. The remaining

amounts are with credit term of 30 to 60 days. At 31 December 2005, the ageing analysis of the Group’s

trade receivables was as follows:

2005 2004

Current to 30 days 968,786 798,907

31 – 60 days 23,480 25

Over 60 days 17,874 2,153

1,010,140 801,085

Including in the balance were trade receivables from related par ties of HK$920,551,000 (2004:

HK$729,925,000). About 91% (2004: 91%) of the trade receivables from related par ties as at 31

December 2005 was covered by bank issued guarantee documents.
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11. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Group Company

2005 2004 2005 2004

Cash at bank and in hand 238,732 217,433 101,925 137,342

Shor t-term bank deposits 67,649 – 67,649 –

306,381 217,433 169,574 137,342

The ef fective interest rate on shor t-term bank deposits was 3.844%. The maturity days of these deposits ranged

from 15 to 35 days.

12. ISSUED EQUITY/SHARE CAPITAL

(a) Issued equity – Group

Number of Issued

shares equity

At 1 Januar y 2005 8,668,480,000 373,750

Capital reorganisation (i) (7,584,920,000) –

Utilisation of contributed surplus against

accumulated losses (ii) – (3,676)

At 31 December 2005 1,083,560,000 370,074

(i) Pursuant to the resolutions passed on a special general meeting on 17 May 2005, the nominal

value of the shares of the Company was reduced from HK$0.01 each to HK$0.00125 each, and

immediately after the reduction, ever y eight then issued shares with nominal value of HK$0.00125

each were consolidated into one new share of HK$0.01 each. After the capital reorganisation, the

issued share capital of the Company comprises 1,083,560,000 shares HK$0.01 each. An amount

of HK$75,849,000 standing to the credit of the share capital account of the Company was

cancelled and credited to the contributed surplus account.

(ii) On 18 March 2005, the board of directors of the Company resolved to apply the entire contributed

surplus of HK$154,440,000 to set of f an equivalent amount of the accumulated losses. Upon

completion of the capital reorganisation, an equivalent amount in the contributed surplus account

was then applied to set of f against the entire remaining accumulated losses of the Company.
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12. ISSUED EQUITY/SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

(b) Share capital – Company

Number of shares – ordinary share

of HK$0.01 each

Issued and Share Share

Authorised fully paid capital premium Total

At 1 Januar y 2004 30,000,000,000 1,558,480,000 15,585 – 15,585

Issue of consideration shares – 6,500,000,000 65,000 (5,975) 59,025

Issue of shares – 610,000,000 6,100 331,030 337,130

At 31 December 2004 30,000,000,000 8,668,480,000 86,685 325,055 411,740

At 1 Januar y 2005 30,000,000,000 8,668,480,000 86,685 325,055 411,740

Capital reorganisation (note 12 (a)(i)) – (7,584,920,000) (75,849) – (75,849)

At 31 December 2005 30,000,000,000 1,083,560,000 10,836 325,055 335,891

(c) Share option

On 25 October 2005, 28,450,000 options were granted to cer tain directors, employees and other

par ticipants at an exercise price of HK$1.488 under the Share Option Scheme. 40% of the options granted

are exercisable from 1 November 2005 to 31 October 2008, another 30% will become exercisable from 1

November 2006 to 31 October 2009 and the remaining 30% will become exercisable from 1 November

2007 to 31 October 2010. No options were exercised, lapsed or cancelled during the year.

The average fair value of the options granted during the year, determined using the Black-Scholes valuation

model, was HK$0.571 per share. The significant inputs into the model were share price of HK$1.45 at the

grant date, exercise price shown above, standard deviation of expected share price returns of 63.6%,

average expected life of options of 2.4 years, and annual risk-free interest rate of approximately 4%. The

volatility measured at the standard deviation of expected share price returns is based on statistical

analysis of daily share prices over one years immediately preceding the grant date. Changes in these

subjective input assumptions could materially af fect the estimation of the fair value of the options.

Expense arising from the share option scheme recognised in administrative expenses during the year

amounted to HK$6,572,000.
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13. OTHER RESERVES

Group

Capital Surplus Share Translation

reserve reserves option reserve Total

(note (a)) (note (b)) (note 12(c))

At 1 Januar y 2004 (1,806) 14,906 – – 13,100

Appropriation from retained earnings – 6,104 – – 6,104

At 31 December 2004 (1,806) 21,010 – – 19,204

At 1 Januar y 2005 (1,806) 21,010 – – 19,204

Share option granted – – 6,572 – 6,572

Appropriation from retained earnings – 4,982 – – 4,982

Currency translation dif ferences – – – 4,304 4,304

At 31 December 2005 (1,806) 25,992 6,572 4,304 35,062

(a) Capital reserve

Capital reser ve represents the exchange dif ferences arising from paid-in capital paid by foreign currencies

in the principal subsidiar y, Sang Fei.

(b) Surplus reserves

In accordance with the “Laws of the People’s Republic of China on Joint Ventures Using Chinese and

Foreign Investment” and Sang Fei’s Ar ticles of Association, appropriations of the reser ve fund and the

enterprise expansion fund from profit after taxation have to be made prior to profit distribution to the equity

owners. The percentage of appropriation of reser ve fund and the enterprise expansion fund is approved by

the board of directors.

Upon approval from the board of directors, the reser ve fund can be used to of fset against accumulated

loses or to increase capital while the enterprise expansion fund can be used to expand production and to

increase capital.
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13. OTHER RESERVES (CONTINUED)

Company

Contributed

surplus Share option Total

At 1 Januar y 2004 and 31 December 2004 140,263 – 140,263

At 1 Januar y 2005 140,263 – 140,263

Capital reorganisation (note 12(a)(i)) 75,849 – 75,849

Utilisation of contributed surplus

against accumulated losses

(note 12(a)(ii)) (154,440) – (154,440)

Share option granted (note 12(c)) – 6,572 6,572

At 31 December 2005 61,672 6,572 68,244

Under the companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the contributed surplus of the Company is distributable to

shareholders in cer tain circumstances as specified in section 54 thereof.

14. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Group Company

2005 2004 2005 2004

Trade payables (note (a)) 966,990 640,669 – –

Other payables from related par ties 10,774 9,079 – –

Accrued expenses 30,583 17,792 3,947 1,899

Advance from customers 24,880 44,037 – –

Other payables 95,967 56,660 – –

1,129,194 768,237 3,947 1,899
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14. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

(a) At 31 December 2005, the ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables was as follows:

2005 2004

Current to 30 days 943,177 578,606

31 – 60 days 2,561 27,257

Over 60 days 21,252 34,806

966,990 640,669

Included in the balance were trade payables to related par ties amounted to HK$56,034,000 (2004:

HK$46,358,000).

15. SHORT-TERM BANK LOANS – GROUP

The bank loans are unsecured, repayable within one year and bear interest at the average borrowing rate of

4.674% (2004: 4.438%) per annum. The carr ying amounts of bank loans are denominated in Renminbi and

approximate their fair values.

The Group has undrawn borrowing facilities of approximately HK$346,154,000 as at 31 December 2005 (2004:

HK$362,059,000). The facilities are at fixed rate and expiring within one year which are subject to review at

various dates during 2006.

16. PROVISION FOR WARRANTY – GROUP

2005 2004

At 1 Januar y 2,214 1,172

Additional provision 11,516 5,949

Less: utilised during the year (11,624) (4,907)

At 31 December 2,106 2,214

The Group provides warranties on products distributed by Sang Fei for end users in the PRC market and

under takes to repair or replace items that fail to operate satisfactorily. Provisions have been recognised for

expected warranty claims based on past experience of the level of repairs and returns.

17. OTHER GAINS – NET

2005 2004

Sales of samples and materials 11,828 8,708

Interest income 4,697 916

Others 1,994 (2,816)

18,519 6,808
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18. EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of goods sold, selling and marketing costs and administrative expenses are analysed as

follows:

2005 2004

Depreciation, amor tisation and impairment expenses (notes 6 and 7) 57,863 53,196

Employee benefit expenses (note 19) 139,525 108,218

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress 4,588 (95,184)

Raw materials and consumables used 4,320,966 4,218,860

Bad debt expense 570 –

Written down of inventories to net realisable value (note 9) 21,024 17,224

Provision on warranty (note 16) 11,516 5,949

Operating lease expenses on buildings 16,168 14,734

Research and development costs 15,830 10,497

Auditors’ remuneration 1,140 889

19. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

2005 2004

Basic salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 118,743 91,891

Contributions to retirement schemes (note a and b) 6,300 6,423

Share based compensation (note 12(c)) 6,572 –

Others 7,910 9,904

139,525 108,218

(a) The Group operates a MPF for the eligible employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s contributions to MPF are

set at 5% (2004: 5%) of employees’ salaries, including basic salaries and other cash allowances and are

expensed as incurred.

(b) The principal operating subsidiar y, Sang Fei, par ticipates in a defined contribution retirement scheme

based on laws and regulations in the PRC. Each employee covered by the scheme is entitled, after their

retirement from Sang Fei, to a pension equal to the basis salar y of the employees as at their retirement

dates in the PRC. The local government authority of the PRC is responsible for the pension liabilities to

these retired employees in the PRC. Sang Fei made monthly contributions to the retirement scheme at a

minimum rate of 8% (2004: 8%) of the basis salaries of employees in the PRC.



59

CHINA ELECTRONICS CORPORATION HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2005

20. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments

The remuneration of each of the directors for the year ended 31 December 2005 is set out below:

Salaries, Employer’s

 allowance contribution Share-based

and benefits Discretionar y to pension compensation

Name of Director Fees in kind bonuses scheme (note 12(c)) Total

Yang Xiaotang – 600 – 30 924 1,554

Tong Baoan – 500 – 25 878 1,403

Fan Qingwu – 400 – 20 832 1,252

Hua Longxing – 404 – – 832 1,236

Chan Kay Cheung 180 – – – – 180

Wong Po Yan 180 – – – – 180

Yin Yongli 180 – – – – 180

540 1,904 – 75 3,466 5,985

During the year, no director has waived emolument or has agreed to waived the directors’ emolument.

The remuneration of each of the directors for the year ended 31 December 2004 is set out below:

Salaries, Employer’s

 allowance contribution Share-based

and benefits Discretionar y to pension compensation

Name of Director Fees in kind bonuses scheme (note 12(c)) Total

Yang Xiaotang (note b) – 150 – 8 – 158

Tong Baoan (note b) – 125 – 6 – 131

Fan Qingwu (note b) – 100 19 5 – 124

Hua Longxing (note b) – 396 19 – – 415

Chan Chak Shing (note a) – 1,326 – 9 – 1,335

Chan Hon Ching (note a) – 113 – 6 – 119

Lo Mei Chun (note a) – 113 – 9 – 122

Chiu King Cheung (note a) – 113 – 5 – 118

Chan Kay Cheung 180 – – – – 180

Wong Po Yan 180 – – – – 180

Yin Yongli (note b) 49 – – – – 49

409 2,436 38 48 – 2,931

Notes:

(a) Resigned on 24 September 2004.

(b) Appointed on 24 September 2004.
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20. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for the year include two directors

(2004: 1) whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to

the remaining three (2004: 4) individual during the year are as follows:

2005 2004

Basic salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 3,397 5,329

Bonuses 1,066 1,667

Contributions to retirement schemes 180 522

Share-based compensation (note 12(c)) 289 –

4,932 7,518

The emoluments fell within the following band:

Number of individuals

2005 2004

HK$1,000,001 – HK$1,500,000 1 1

HK$1,500,001 – HK$2,000,000 2 1

HK$2,000,001 – HK$2,500,000 – 1

HK$2,500,001 – HK$3,000,000 – 1

3 4

21. FINANCE COSTS

2005 2004

Interest on bank loans 11,501 21,180
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22. TAXATION

(a) Income tax expense

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income statement represents:

2005 2004

Current taxation – PRC enterprise income tax 10,112 8,518

Deferred taxation (4,514) –

5,598 8,518

(i) No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group has no assessable profit for

the year (2004: Nil).

(ii) The principal subsidiar y, Sang Fei, is a foreign investment production enterprise established in

Shenzhen Special Economic Zone in the PRC, the prevailing PRC enterprise income tax rate is 15%.

As approved by the tax authoristies in 1998, Sang Fei is entitled to exemption from income tax for

two years followed by a 50% tax reduction for three years, commencing from the year ended 31

December 2000, the first cumulative profit-making year net of losses carried forward. Sang Fei was

cer tified as a high technology enterprise from 2002 and as approved by the tax authorities in 2004.

Sang Fei is entitled to 50% tax reduction from enterprise income tax for fur ther three years star ting

from 2005. Consequently, enterprise income tax has been provided at the rate of 7.5% (2004:

7.5%) for the year.

(iii) The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation dif fers from the theoretical amount that would

arise using the taxation rate in the PRC as follows:

2005 2004

Profit before income tax 89,946 14,959

Calculated at a taxation rate of 15% (2004: 15%) 13,492 2,244

Profit earned in the tax holiday period (11,074) (6,323)

Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes 317 12,008

Tax losses for which no deferred

income tax asset was recognised 2,863 589

Income tax expense 5,598 8,518
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22. TAXATION (CONTINUED)

(b) Deferred taxation

The movement on the deferred tax assets during the year is as follows:

Group

2005 2004

At 1 Januar y – –

Deferred taxation credited to the income statement 4,514 –

At 31 December 4,514 –

Representing deferred tax assets arising from:

Impairment of inventories 2,939 –

Accelerated depreciation of proper ty, plant and equipment 540 –

Others 1,035 –

4,514 –

The amounts shown in the balance sheet include the following:

Group

2005 2004

Deferred tax assets to be recovered after more than 12 months 3,479 –

Deferred tax assets to be recovered within 12 months 1,035 –

4,514 –

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carr ying-forwards to the extent that the realisation of the

related tax benefit through the future taxable profits is probable. The Group did not recognise deferred income tax

assets of HK$2,863,000 (2004: HK$589,000) in respect of losses amounted to HK$16,363,000 (2004:

HK$3,366,000) as there is no reasonable expectation that losses will be recovered in the foreseable future.

23. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt with the accounts of the Company to the extent of

the HK$28,130,000 (2004: HK$30,465,000).

24. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share is based on the Group’s profit attributable to equity holders

of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2005 of HK$49,899,000 (2004: loss of HK$19,263,000) and

the 1,083,560,000 (2004: the weighted average of 885,819,508 ordinar y shares) ordinar y shares in issue during

the year.
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24. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

As detailed in note 12(a)(i), the Company carried out a capital reorganisation during the year. The capital

reorganisation is deemed to have been taken place on 1 Januar y 2004 for the purpose of computing the earnings/

(loss) per share and the financial information for the year ended 31 December 2004 has been restated

accordingly.

The exercise of the share options granted under the Share Option Scheme of the Company would have an anti-

dilutive ef fect on the earnings per share for the year and therefore, no diluted earnings per share has been

presented.

25. DIVIDEND

The directors proposed a final dividend of HK$0.02 per share (2004: Nil) amounting to a total dividend of

HK$21,671,000 in cash which is subject to the approval by the shareholders of the Company at the for thcoming

annual general meeting.

26. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

2005 2004

Profit for the year 84,348 6,441

Adjustment for:

Income tax expense 5,598 8,518

Depreciation of owned proper ty, plant and equipment 55,334 43,081

Impairment of goodwill – 61,498

Impairment of proper ty, plant and equipment – 7,359

Amor tisation of intangible assets 2,529 2,756

Profit on sale of proper ty, plant and equipment (4) –

Interest income (4,697) (916)

Interest expense 11,501 21,180

Share-based compensation 6,572 –

Changes in working capital (excluding the ef fects of

acquisition and exchange dif ferences on consolidation)

Inventories (58,415) (133,893)

Trade and other receivables (153,553) 84,756

Trade and other payables 365,730 (16,246)

Provision for warranty (108) 1,042

Cash generated from operations 314,835 85,576

In the cash flow statement, proceeds from sale of proper ty, plant and equipment comprise:

2005 2004

Net book amount (note 6) 668 112

Profit on sale of proper ty, plant and equipment 4 –

Proceeds from sale of proper ty, plant and equipment 672 112
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts

27. COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments – Group

As at 31 December 2005, the Group’s capital commitment which were contracted but not provided for were

as follows:

2005 2004

Purchase of proper ty, plant and equipment

and computer software 3,163 8,717

(b) Operating lease commitments

As at 31 December 2005, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases for factories and of fice premises as follows:

Group Company

2005 2004 2005 2004

Not later than one year 25,635 24,676 631 175

In the second to fifth years 27,808 37,987 626 131

53,443 62,663 1,257 306

28. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities outstanding as at 31 December 2005 (2004: Nil).

29. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

Save as disclosed other where in this repor t, significant related par ty transactions of the Group’s business are as

follows:

During the year, the Group entered into transactions with companies under common control of:

– CEC, the ultimate holding company. These companies are denoted by * below;

– Koninklijke Philips Electronics N.V. (“KPE”) (a company incorporated in Holland), the ultimate holding

company of the minority shareholder with significant influence on operation of the principal subsidiar y,

Sang Fei. These companies are denoted by # below:
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29. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(a) Sales of products, samples and materials:

2005 2004

Sales of products:

Philips (China) Investment Co., Ltd. # 1,797,211 –

Philips Electronics (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. # – 1,735,539

Philips France S.A.S. # 689,190 1,525,193

Philips Electronics Singapore Pte. Ltd. # 606,578 719,537

Philips Electronics Hong Kong Ltd. # 515,138 169,136

Shenzhen SED Coalition Electronics Co., Ltd. * – 25,550

Philips Electronics Trading Services

(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. # 8,428 –

CEC Wireless R&D Ltd. * – 899

Sales of samples and materials:

Philips Electronics (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. # 13,349 12,429

Philips (China) Investment Co., Ltd. # 40,143 –

Philips Electronics Hong Kong Ltd. # 16,962 –

Shenzhen SED Industr y Co., Ltd. * 4,444 17,513

Philips Electronics Singapore Pte. Ltd. # 6,660 –

CEC Group, others * 360 76

Philips Group, others # 929 293

Members of KPE and its af filiated companies (the “Philips Group”) and members of CEC and its group

companies (the “CEC Group”) are the major customers of the Group.
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29. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(b) Other transactions

2005 2004

Purchase of raw materials:

Philips Electronics Hong Kong Ltd. # 421,970 1,033,030

Philips (China) Investment Co., Ltd. # 12,208 –

Shenzhen Sang Da Baili Electronics Co., Ltd. * 7,748 8,052

Philips Electronics (Beijing) Co., Ltd. # 2,216 –

Philips France S.A.S. # 701 764

Philips Electronics Trading Services

(Shanghai) Co., Ltd # 971 –

CEC Group, others * 569 –

Philips Group, others # 312 407

Corporate ser vices:

Philips Electronics Hong Kong Ltd. # – 15,535

Processing ser vices:

Shenzhen Sang Da Baili Electronics Co., Ltd. * 4,867 5,572

Shenzhen SED Industr y Co., Ltd. * 4,107 792

Fitment and decoration ser vices:

Shenzhen SED Fitment & Decoration Co., Ltd. * 2,459 5,065

Canteen ser vices:

Shenzhen Sang Da Baili Electronics Co., Ltd. * 11,273 6,459

Repair and maintenance ser vices:

Shenzhen SED ARC Co., Ltd. * 1,493 1,175

Rental:

Shenzhen SED Industr y Co., Ltd. * 7,283 4,996

Shenzhen Sang Da Baili Electronics Co., Ltd. * – 1,014

Purchases of proper ty, plant and equipment:

Assembleon Hong Kong Ltd. # – 19,649



67

CHINA ELECTRONICS CORPORATION HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2005

29. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(c) Year-end balance arising from sales and other transactions

2005 2004

Receivables from related par ties:

Philips (China) Investment Co., Ltd. # 500,921 –

Philips Electronics (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. # 5,553 329,251

Philips France S.A.S. # 100,739 245,932

Philips Electronics Singapore Pte. Ltd. # 212,126 139,989

Philips Electronics Hong Kong Ltd. # 123,494 29,531

Philips Electronics Trading Services

(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. # 3,928 –

Shenzhen SED Industr y Co., Ltd. * – 7,026

Shenzhen Sang Da Baili Electronics Co., Ltd. * – 1,327

Payables to related par ties:

Philips Electronics Hong Kong Ltd. # 45,218 35,887

Philips (China) Investment Co., Ltd. # 12,325 3

Shenzhen Sang Da Baili Electronics Co., Ltd. * 1,010 5,661

Philips France S.A.S. # 1,523 4,622

Philips Electronics Singapore Pte. Ltd. # 3,081 2,577

Shenzhen SED Coalition Electronics Co., Ltd. * 1,146 –

Langfang CEC Dacheng Electronic Co., Ltd. * 652 –

Philips Electronics (Beijing) Co., Ltd. # 608 –

Philips Electronics Trading Services

(Shanghai) Co., Ltd # 292 –

Shenzhen Fitment and Decoration Co., Ltd. * 29 –

30. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The Group has adopted new HKFRS which are ef fective for accounting periods commencing on or after 1 Januar y

2005. As mentioned in note 2, this has resulted in changes to the presentation of cer tain items and comparative

financial information has been restated accordingly. In addition, cer tain comparative figures have been reclassified

to conform to the current year presentation.
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Set out below is a summar y of the financial information of the Group for the last five financial years.

RESULTS

Year ended 31 December

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

(note) (note) (note)

Sales 4,768,526 4,590,123 3,369  708 240,376

Profit/(loss) before income tax 89,946 14,959 (85,756) (48,255) (471,571)

Income tax expense (5,598) (8,518)  –  – (10,821)

Profit/(loss) for the year 84,348 6,441 (85,756) (48,255) (482,392)

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company 49,899 (19,263) (85,756) (47,177) (479,400)

Minority interests 34,449 25,704  – (1,078) (2,992)

84,348 6,441 (85,756) (48,255) (482,392)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

As at 31 December

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

(note) (note) (note)

Total assets 1,936,037 1,660,344 7,534 76,283 102,138

Total liabilities (1,367,642) (1,166,219) (74,757) (57,750) (86,557)

Minority interests (138,379) (124,884)  –  – (1,078)

430,016 369,241 (67,223) 18,533 14,503

Note:

The financial information as at 31 December 2001, 2002 and 2003 and for the three financial years then ended as set out above are that

of the Winsan Group, and are not comparable to the basis of preparation of accounts as at 31 December 2004 and 2005 and for the two

financial years then ended.


